ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
Sept enber 25, 2007
2:32 p.m

DRAFT
VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Paul Seaton, Chair
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representative Craig Johnson
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Represent ati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Mark Neuman
Represent ati ve Bob Roses
Representative Scott Kawasaki

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 134

“"An Act relating to conservation and protection of wld sal non
production in drainages affecting the Bristol Bay Fisheries
Reserve; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 134

SHORT TITLE: PROTECTI ON OF SALMON SPAWNI NG WATER
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) EDGVON

02/ 14/ 07 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 07 (H) FSH, RES

02/ 28/ 07 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM BARNES 124

02/ 28/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 28/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE -1- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



03/ 02/ 07 (H)

03/ 02/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d
03/ 02/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)
03/ 05/ 07 (H)

03/ 05/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d
03/ 05/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)
05/ 09/ 07 (H)

05/ 09/ 07 (H) Heard & Held
05/ 09/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)
09/ 24/ 07 (H)

09/ 24/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d
09/ 24/ 07 (H) M NUTE( FSH)
09/ 25/ 07 (H)

W TNESS REG STER

FRED PI KE

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 134.

BRAD RUSH, Student
Bristol Bay Borough Hi gh School
[ Locati on unknown]

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 134.

ADAM DUBAY
Naknek, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 134,

JODI E MCDONNELL
Naknek, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 134.

SCOITY SAVO, Commerci al Fi sherman
Naknek, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

DAN M CHELS, Oaner
Crystal Creek Lodge
Ki ng Sal non, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

CARL ANDERSON
Naknek, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support

PAUL HANSEN, Commerci al Fi sher nan
Naknek, Al aska

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 2-

FSH AT 8: 30 AM BARNES 124

FSH AT 8: 30 AM BARNES 124

FSH AT 8: 30 AM BARNES 124

FSH AT 4:30 PM Newhal en

FSH AT 2: 00 PM Naknek

of HB 134.

of HB 134.

of HB 134.

DRAFTSept enber 25, 2007



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 134.

MATT PRI CE, Omner

Price's Guide Service

Ki ng Sal non, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 134.

MYRA COLSEN, Deputy Mayor

Lake and Borough Assenbly

Egegi k, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 134.

GEORGE W LSON
Naknek, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 134.

SHEI LA BERCEY
Ki ng Sal non, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 134.

LI NDSAY BLOOV| Board Menber

Uni ted Fi shernen of Al aska

Menber, Bristol Bay Drift Netters Association

Menber, Al aska | ndependent Fishernen’s Marketing Association
Contractor, Trout Unlimted

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 134.

EVERETT THOWPSON, Member

Naknek Village Counci

Shar ehol der, Bristol Bay Native Corporation

Naknek, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 134.

MARK ANGASAN, Village Representative
Ki ng Sal non, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 134.

ALEX SAVO
Naknek, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 134.

PETE HI LL
Naknek, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 134.

GLEN ALSWORTH, SR., Mayor

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 3- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



Lake and Peni nsul a Bor ough

Port Al sworth, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

BETTY BONI N
Naknek, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

VI OLET W LSON
Naknek, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

JEFF CURRI ER, Manager

Testified on HB 134.
Testified in support
Testified in support

Lake and Peni nsul a Borough

Ki ng Sal non, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

MAUREEN KNUTSEN
Naknek, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

ALAN ASPELUND SR
Naknek, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

PATRI CI A EDEL, Owner

Bed and Breakfast/ Sport Fishing Lodge

Ki ng Sal non, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

RI CK EDEL
Ki ng Sal non, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

ANNETTE W LSON
Ki ng Sal non, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

PETER ANGESAN
Ki ng Sal non, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

JOHN HOLMAN, Owner
No Seeum Lodge

Ki ng Sal non, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE

of HB 134.

of HB 134.

Testified in opposition to HB 134.
Testified in support of HB 134.

Testified in opposition to HB 134.
Testified in support of HB 134.

Testified on HB 134.

Testified in support of HB 134.

Testified in support of HB 134.

Testified in support of HB 134.

- 4- DRAFTSept enber 25, 2007



DOUGLAS OLSON
Naknek, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 134.

JOHN SAVO JR
Naknek, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 134.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
DRAFT

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House Special Conmittee on
Fisheries neeting to order at 2:32:31 PM Representati ves
Seat on, Edgnon, W I son, Holnes, Johnson, Johansen, and LeDoux
were present at the call to order. Represent ati ves Neunan,
Gatto, Kawasaki, and Roses were also in attendance.

2:32:54 PM

HB 134- PROTECTI ON OF SALMON SPAWNI NG WATER

CHAI R SEATON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 134, "An Act relating to conservation and
protection of wild salnon production in drainages affecting the
Bristol Bay Fisheries Reserve; and providing for an effective
date."

[ The nmotion to adopt CSHB 134, Version 25-LS0381\M Kane,
2/ 22/ 07, was left pending at the 2/28/ 07 neeting.]

2:33: 05 PM

CHAI R SEATON clarified the purpose of the bill and how it would
effect different entities by stipulating restrictions on water
usage. This action would have a w de range of inplications, and
he enphasized that the commttee is interested to hear from each
wi tness, what restrictions they would be interested in having
i ncluded or excepted fromthe bill. This bill does not directly
regulate water quality, rather it disallows certain water
usages, to maintain the current water quality. He restated that
the Dbill restricts water users/usage, not water quality.
Additionally, he pointed out that the bill would have an i npact

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE -5- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



on mning, or any developnent activities, because of water
usage, however, it is not “for or against Pebble Mne.” He
asked the area residents to speak to what they anticipate could
result in unintended inpacts, and what |anguage, they would Iike
to have included in the final bill. Submi ssion of witten
testi mony was encouraged. Finally, he acknow edged the presence

of several |ocal school classes, taking part in the gallery.

2:41:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON, as sponsor of HB 134, offered an

introduction of the proposed |egislation. He enphasi zed that
the bill is currently a “work draft,” and the testinonies being
heard will help to form the final bill. HB 134 builds on the
1972 bill, sponsored by then Senator Jay Hammond, to create the
Bristol Bay Fisheries Reserve. Apparently some confusion has
arisen, as to whether this bill would create a refuge, and he
gave assurance that a refuge is not being contenplated. The

Bristol Bay Fisheries Reserve provides |anguage in statute
stipulating that, if there is to be any surface economc
activity dealing with oil and gas, the legislature wll be
involved, via the resolution process, prior to such activity
pr oceedi ng.

EDGVON directed attention to page 2 of the bill, regarding
potential danmages to salnon habitat. He read the conditions
listed, that could cause such damage. A corporation found in to
be in violation would be subject to significant fines; up to $1
mllion dollars per day. Listed in the bill, following the
protective conditions, are the exenptions, which would not be
subject to restriction/fines. For clarity, he read the |ist of

exceptions on page 2, subsection (b), paragraphs (1)-(6). The

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 6- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



crafting of this language, to create the appropriate water use
policies, is the major aspect being addressed by these hearings.
Subsection (c) sets forth the fines for individuals from $10 up
to $5,000 per day, and corporations from $1,000 up to $1 mllion
per day. He enphasized that the intent of this bill is to
protect the water, and related resources, of the Bristol Bay
ar ea. Gven the large scale mneral developnents on the

horizon, this legislation is necessary to protect the resource.

CHAI R SEATON corrected that the corporate fine is not less than
$100,000 a day, and up to $1 mllion. Further, he laid out the
protocol for providing testinony, and added the caveat that
testimony would not be taken via teleconference, at this
meet i ng. Future neetings, in Juneau, wi || allow for

t el econferenced testinony.

2:51: 13 PM 2:52:58

FRED PI KE, [Inaudible.] He said, “You have to allow for |ocal
devel opnment. [lnaudible.] But | am very concerned about sal non
quality, and protection of our salnon streans.” He cited the
124 years of comrercial fishing in Bristol Bay that have
provi ded nunerous jobs to many people. [Ilnaudible.]

CHAI R SEATON drew attention to the speaker’s statenent regarding
the inportance of not inpacting normal, comrercial devel opnent,
and asked what |evel of water usage he thinks should be allowed

under the bill before it is restricted.

MR. PIKE replied [inaudible].

2:55:19 PM 2: 56: 22

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE -7- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



BRAD RUSH, St udent , Bri st ol Bay Bor ough H gh  School ,
[ I naudi bl e. ] He stated, “They can’'t have their mne and
commercial fishing at the sane tine.”

2:57:02 PM 2:58: 07

ADAM DUBAY, [ I naudi bl e.]

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked how he would like transportation to
be addressed in the bill.

MR. DUBAY responded [i naudi bl e].

2:59:36 PM 3:00: 42

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if, as the local welding teacher, he
is preparing his students for future jobs on a gas pipeline, or
ot her industrial jobs.

VMR. DUBAY replied [inaudible].

CHAI R SEATON responded to an unidentified, inaudible speaker in
the gallery, that this is a public hearing, not a debate or
guestion and answer opportunity.

3:01:43 PM 3:02: 24

JODI E MCDONNELL, [1naudible.]

CHAI R SEATON said her question is of a legal nature and can not

be answered by the commttee nenbers.

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 8- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



[ An auditory change took place, which hel ped sound quality].

M5. MCDONNELL said that she would like to see the fishery

preserved by protecting the watershed.

3:03:45 PM 3: 04: 44

SCOTTY SAVO, Commercial Fisherman, as a generational fisherman
he said that this town would not exist wthout the fishery. He
stated that he would like to see the waters kept clean to
preserve the resource for future generations of fishernen.

3:04: 43 PM 3: 05: 55

DAN M CHELS, Owner, Crystal Creek Lodge, opined that the bill is
very well witten. He cautioned the aspect regardi ng customary
use of gravel [inaudible]. Sonmething |like Pebble Mne, he said,
that big of a hole in the ground is going to be very permanent.
He questioned whether the trade off for jobs will be worth the
cost of the magnificent w | derness.

3:06: 50 PM 3: 07: 56

CARL ANDERSON, said he fished for half of his Iife, but he is no
| onger a fishernan. [ I naudi bl e. ] He said, “lI agree with the
bill, ....” [Inaudible.]

CHAIR SEATON clarified that his testinony supports allow ng

commercial uses to be permtted in the future, but not the

expansi on of other industries.

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 9- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



MR. ANDERSON responded that if sonmeone wanted to cone in and
drill for oil, it would be an opportunity for jobs, “but we
really don't want to see it.” On the other hand, he said, if
someone wanted to cone in and open a new guide service, or
expand a dock, the restrictions should not [|imt those

activities.

CHAI R SEATON questioned if he is looking at the scale of the
project, and does he support oil and gas as part of the energy

exenpti on.
MR. ANDERSON said, “That is correct.”
3:09:58 PM 3: 11: 03

PAUL HANSEN, Comrercial Fisherman,, said he is a generationa
fisherman of the area. He supports the status quo, and
expressed concerned for the possibilities of |ong term damage by

m neral exploitation.
3:11:34 PM 3:12: 44

MATT PRICE, Omer, Price’'s Cuide Service, cautioned how nuch
damage can occur in the long-term by a large scale mne. He
said he is for this bill and against anything that would allow

for a m ne.

CHAI R SEATON asked whet her he woul d support or oppose |and based

oil and gas devel oprent.

MR PRICE cited concerns that could arise around oil and gas

devel opnment, such as the sludge factor. [Inaudible.]

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 10- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



3:14: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if the |odges that he manages have

wat er rights.

MR PRICE replied, “I believe so.”

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON recalled that only eight lodges in the
area have water rights, and under this |egislation other |odges

woul d have to close, or be subject to a daily fine.

MR. PRICE answered that he did not have that understanding.
[ I naudi bl e. ]

3:16: 36 PM 3:17: 36

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON commented that the colleague from

Anchorage, has taken a dramatic interpretation of the bill. As
the sponsor he would not see the bill having such an effect on
the area | odges. Certainly, that is not the intent, and the
reason that it is still undergoing revision

CHAI R SEATON pointed out that on page 2, line 17, the |anguage

stipulates “uses authorized, approved, and permtted before the

effective date...”, which does not grandfather in existing
oper at i ons. Water wuse would need to be, or have been
previously permtted. However, if people want to have that as
part of the bill, they should offer testinony to that effect.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON cl arified that he was stating the bill as

it is presented today. Further, he read from the fiscal note

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE -11- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



provided by DNR [2/27/07] paraphrasing: “... industrial

commercial, recreational wuses wll severely be curtailed or
forecl osure of those uses.” That is an accurate reading of how
the bill is worded today, he enphasized and said, that what is
being proposed wll effect the economc developnment of this

entire area.

3:20: 36 PM 3: 21: 40

MYRA OLSEN, Deputy Mayor, stated that she opposes the bill in
its entirety. It is hard to nmake a living today as a commerci a
fisherman, and definitely not as a crew nenber. The borough is
currently experiencing a relocation of the residents for
econom ¢ reasons. People are looking for viable alternatives to
fishing to keep the comunity alive, she opined. Thi s
legislation will stifle economc development in the region.
Neither does it appear to fix any problens; it discrimnates
agai nst who can use water. She maintained that water quality is
the issue that needs to be worked on through |egislation, not
who gets to use the water

The commttee took an at-ease from 3:23:35 PM 3:24:30 to 3:30:02
PM 3: 26: 31.

3:32: 25 PM 3: 28: 51

GECRCGE WLSON, said he has lived in the area for 28 years,
raising his famly, and enjoying both sport and subsistence
fishing. He opined that the recent upturn, in fish prices, has
been the nature of the fishery;, sourced from a naturally
pristine environnent and marketed as such. Additionally, the
salnon harvest in the Bristol Bay area represent nore than an
industry but also a way of |ife, as a mgjor link in the |oca

food chain. A large scale, commercial enterprise would threaten

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE -12- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



t hat bal ance and i nt errupt t he nat ur al envi ronment .

[ I naudi bl e. ] He stated that no large scale operation has ever

contributed anything to the environment; only detracted. One
report of an accidental spill of any pollutant, from an
operation |ike the Pebble Mne, would result in a conplete

coll apse of the fishing industry built on the market base of
being pristine and natural. However, he would not want to see
HB 134 elimnate any current industry, or prohibit the expansion
of existing holdings. He is opposed to large scale mning or

oi | production in the area.

3:35:30 PM 3: 31: 55

SHEI LA BERCGEY, stated that she is opposed to HB 134, or any
other legislation, that would create a reserve wth added
restrictions on any sort of econom c devel opnent. Any | arge-
scale mning, or oil and gas devel opnent, should be allowed to
be “played out” through the permtting process.

3:36:48 PM 3: 33: 46

LI NDSAY BLOOM  Board Menber, United Fishernmen of Al aska;

Menber, Bristol Bay Drift Netters Association;, Menber, Al aska
| ndependent Fishernen’s Marketing Association;, Contractor Trout
Unlimted;, <cited the need to protect fisheries throughout
Alaska via this type of |legislation. She observed that the
overriding sentinent supports the intent of the bill: to
protect fisheries and fish habitat. “Not even water quality,”
she said. Unfortunately, |egislative |oopholes are not apparent
to those outside of the body, or to |awers. No fisherman is
going to support sonmething that will get in the way of their

livelihood, she opined.

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 13- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN said he doesn’t think there is anyone who
wants to see the resources damaged in any way. Recal ling the
DNR presentation, at the previous hearing [9/24/07], he asked if
the departnent’s extensive permtting process [should be

consi dered adequat e] .

M5. BLOOM responded that two red flags are imedi ately apparent.
One, she said, was the expected “confort” to be achieved by the
production of a 1,500 page EPA docunent generated from base line
st udi es. This does not provide confort, as it wuld be a
daunting task to penetrate such a docunent, neither is it
friendly for public participation in the process. The second
red flag, was the slide that indicated that statute dictates DNR
to be the coordinator for the permtting of large mnes in the
state, however it didn't stipulate how the departnment should go
about this task. She said that she would be nobre confortable
wi th ADF&G managi ng fish and gane habitat in Bristol Bay.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN suggested that she provide information to
the state departnents directly, and pointed out that the
departnment heads are appointed as part of the governor’s
adm ni strati on. However, as legislators working directly for
the people of Alaska, the conmttee is eager to receive detailed
feedback, of what the public desires for their area. Thi s
provides critical assistance to the legislators in the decision
maki ng process. [Audio was |ost for approximately six seconds.]
He encouraged the witness to feel free to contact the involved

entities, and submit constructive guidelines.

3:42: 54 PM 3: 39: 24

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 14- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what steps could be taken to provide
a confortable permtting process, with regard to mning activity
t hroughout the state; aside from noving the habitat office out
of DNR

M5. BLOOM said she would submt her response in witing.

3:43:49 PM 3:40: 16

EVERETT THOWSON, Menber, Naknek Village Council;, Sharehol der,
Bristol Bay Native Corporation;, introduced hinself as an area
comercial fisherman since the age of seven, and a subsistence
user. He said, “lI am here to support [HB] 134, because |
believe we don’t have enough protection for our fish, and our
other natural renewable resources, presently.” For opti mal
mar keti ng, he makes every effort to add quality to the fish; to
make a Bristol Bay caught wld salnon as desirable to the
custoner as possible. The know edge that the world s |argest
open pit mne is located at the head waters of this fishing
ground, <can only have an adverse effect on the narket.
Additionally, he stated concern for effects on the spawning
grounds, considering the range of mning activities that would
be taking place: water usage, explosions, toxic tailing ponds,
dust, and energy use. Wiat will be left behind, he asked. More
protection is necessary. The fishing industry is controlled by
the fisherman, and it is currently going through a period of
i nproved net hodol ogy, which has resulted in an expanded nmarket.
However, the fishermen wll not have control over mne
activities. Al though he indicated that he is not against all

m ning, he opined that this region would be the worst place to

locate a mine. It is not just Pebble Mne that is interested in
locating in this area, and he cautioned, “Once you let one
[mMmne] in, | believe nore will be right behind them” Si nce

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 15- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



Northern Dynasty first cane to Newhalen to make a presentation

in 2004, he has undertaken an independent study on mning, and
its effects. He stated that he is a volunteer resource nenber,
and he related his experience of nmanning a booth at the Al aska
State Fair [Pal nmer]. By not protecting this resource, it wll
cause a trade off of a non-renewable resource for one that is
renewabl e. If protected, however, the area fishery will becone
nore valuable on a world scale, as other areas succunb to
pol | uti on. The areas Native Corporations have passed
resolutions, to protect the area, however, it 1is at the

| egislative I evel that action needs to take place, he finished.

3:48: 58 PM 3: 45: 29

MARK ANGASAN, Village Representative, said he is a commercial
fi sherman, and does not know how many people are paying for
their electricity, heat and other basic needs. The mjority of
the village econony is based on the fishery, and additional

opportunities are needed in the area. Until all the [permts
are conpleted], it will not be clear whether or not to allow the
m ne. The sport fishing industry, this area is “a big
pl ayground; that has to stop.” Tourism and subsistence are

good, but we live in a cash econony and need solutions to our
probl ems, he sai d.

3:52: 34 PM 3:48: 57

ALEX SAVO, stated that he supports HB 134, however, limts on

activities such as guiding, should be n ninal

3:54: 28 PM 3:50: 50

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 16- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



PETE HI LL, stated that he is a retired teacher, who has taught
in several villages in the area. He related that one of
di sappoi ntnents, of teaching in these areas, was that the
graduates |eave the schools “with nowhere to go.” In order to
make a living they leave the villages, and he opined that this
is causing the villages to die. Al t hough he is not opposed to
HB 134 in its entirety, he said he opposes it because of what

“it doesn’t do.”

CHAI R SEATON encouraged himto submit witten testinony of what
he would |ike to see the bill cover.

3:56: 07 PM 3:52: 27

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON asked what aspects does he agree with.

MR. HILL answered that he agrees with the section on the water
However, the canneries should be dealt with and not
grandfathered in, as they are a mgjor source of water and |and
based pol | ution.

3:57:14 PM 3:53: 27

GLEN ALSWORTH, SR, Mayor, stated that if any |legislation
threatens the ability of the borough to generate economc
revenue fromits lands, or the lands within its boundaries, it
could threaten the ability of the area to nmaintain the borough
tax base. The loss of the tax base would effect the schools and
ot her nunicipal prograns. Restricting econom c opportunities,
that residents can expect to garner from their |and hol dings,
could elimnate the future of the borough and its people. The

aspect of the bill that applies broad prohibitions on various

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE -17- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



potential types of econom c devel opnent, is a major concern to

t he borough.

CHAI R SEATON asked what he neant by financing the borough.

MR.  ALSWORTH responded that the borough has a large |I|and
entitlenment being processed. Assuming the receipt of the full
entitlement, the land could provide a potential econom c base to
create businesses. The two current sources of revenue are a
fish tax and a bed tax for |odging. It would be inportant to
allow for the expansion of these two industries, as well as the
devel opment of other revenue sources that have not yet cone to
bear . The opportunity to diversify is inperative to the
continued health of the borough.

CHAIR SEATON inquired if the land selection was based on any

potential mneral content.

MR, ALSWORTH answered no, that was not his understanding. The
scope of the available land to select was fairly narrow. To a
followup from Chair Seaton, he said that the borough does have
a severance tax. To a further question, he said, it appears
that HB 134 could create difficulty for an existing |lodge to
expand/ bui l d i nprovenents, or for a new entrant to the market to
start-up. Water quality is a concern for everyone in the
region, however, the bill appears to address water usage nore
than water quality. Finally, he said, it would be inportant to
be enhancing the salnon run, and he provided exanples of how

t hat m ght be done.

4:02: 57 PM 4:01: 15

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 18- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON reiterated that the bill strives to
provide a higher level of protection for salnon, and asked

whet her the borough supports that intent.

MR. ALSWORTH responded that habitat support needs to be
hi ghl i ghted, supported, and defined. Then it can receive the
ut nost protection. The fines for violating, he said, are not
necessary and somewhat usel ess. Once the damage has occurred

no level of nonetary mtigation can recapture the natural
el enents of a desecrated stream violation noney cannot replace
what woul d be | ost. Designing and permtting should not allow
anything that would ever do damage at that |evel; protection is
essential. He made suggestions for enhancing the sal non run.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON interpreted that the borough supports the
protective |levels for salnon that HB 134 delineates.

MR, ALSWORTH agreed, and pointed out that the concern is for the
restriction of devel opnment “down the road.” The constraints, he
said, could be like killing a gnat with a sl|ledgehamer; the
peopl e of the area should not beconme an endangered species. Use
of the water by the people, while supporting a major salnon run

is not necessarily nmutually excl usive.

4:09: 02 PM 4:05: 22

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX stated that she is not hearing him pledge
support for this bill, but given his concerns for the water

gquality, would he support a nore rigorous permtting process.

MR. ALSWORTH confessed that he is unfamliar enough with the

permtting process that he would have no idea what permts would

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE -19- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



be required to build a dock in front of his house. He reported
that it took himtw years to receive water rights to keep his
garden wat er ed. However, there has been no one from DNR
reviewi ng/enforcing his water usage. The permt is no better

than the enforcenent.

CHAI R SEATON said the committee will incorporate his suggestion

for exenpting fisheries enhancenent prograns.

MR. ALSWORTH finished by stating the positive focus that the
1972 Hammond bill, and these hearings have brought to the

regi on.

4:13:18 PM 4:09: 41

BETTY BONIN, said, “I truly believe that history repeats itself.
Wen you hear about the devastation, the oil and mning
conpani es have done in other areas, we need to pay attention.”
She enphasized the need to protect the spawning grounds and the
fishery. The nunber of jobs that the mne will offer, do not
conpare with the nunber of jobs that are supported by the
fishing industry. | f developers are allowed to do what they
want to do, the area would be left “wth a ness to clean up,
contam nated water, and contam nated sal non. However, the bill
should not restrict residents from their way of l|ife; protect

the water, the sal non, and the spawni ng grounds.

CHAI R SEATON asked if she is supportive of the exenption for
energy projects, and should that i nclude oil and gas

devel opnent .

M5. BONAN sai d she supports on-shore oil drilling only.

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 20- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



4:15:48 PM 4:12: 06

VI OLET WLSON, introduced herself as a generational fishernman,
froma famly that has fished the area for over 100 years, and
said that subsistence has always been a reliable resource. Her
under standi ng, and concern, is that one out of every three open
pit mnes, in the world, has pollution problens. The fish have
provi ded her an existence, and she said, “If it wasn't for our
fish, only God knows where | would be.” The fish support her
and her famly.

4:18: 57 PM 4: 15: 02

JEFF CURRI ER, Manager, Lake and Peninsula Borough, suggested
that by <creating this bill, the legislature is making an
assunption that the environnent is not being protected well
enough, and another “layer” of laws are in order. It has been
clearly stated, however, that the residents wll not trade the
fisheries for mnes. He opined that HB 134 is flawed, and w |

create nore problens than it wll solve. He warned those who
testified in favor of the bill to be careful what they ask for,
because they just mght get it. The current process, with the

federal and state requirenments, should work to protect the

environnment. This bill is not necessary, he said.

4:23:17 PM 4:19: 20

MAUREEN KNUTSEN, stated that she favors the highest protection
for Alaska’s waters. She opined that a |arge scal e devel opnent,

such as an open pit mne with its potential for pollution,

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE -21- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



cannot coexist with the fishery. Erring on the side of caution
is inportant. Consi dering the global effects of pollution, she
said that this resource can only beconme nore valuable. Finally,

she recommended readi ng the book, Rivers of Life, to gain an in-

dept h know edge of the Bristol Bay watershed.

4:26:34 PM 4:22: 27

ALAN ASPELUND SR., expressed his concern for the younger
generation, receiving their native land allotnments along the
river, and possibly being denied the opportunity to establish
| odges or guiding facilities. He recomended that a water
volume restriction be included in the bill. Such a restriction
woul d prevent |arge scale operations from msusing the area. He
stated that he supports maintaining the watershed s cl ean water.

4:32:00 PM 4: 28: 26

PATRICIA EDEL, Omer, Bed and Breakfast/Sport Fishing Lodge,
stated support for the bill, and recommended that it be witten
to deal specifically with |arge scale commercial operations,
such as mning. She opined that it is inperative to include the
ability to inpose large fines.

CHAI R SEATON asked what her position would be on oil, gas, and

ener gy devel opnent.

MS. EDEL provided support for on-shore devel opnent.

4:34:21 PM 4:30: 16

RICK EDEL, said that the bill is too specific in sone areas
while being too broad in others. The |anguage on energy

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 22- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



projects could allow for unintended consequences, he cautioned.
Al so, grandfathering may present problens, and such action
should be closely considered. He recommended that the bill:
focus on mintaining water quality; expand the area of
protection to all areas of Bristol Bay; allow commercial
devel opnent that doesn't interfere with water quality; and

define specific energy projects.

CHAIR SEATON inquired if he is supportive of on-shore oil and

gas devel opnent .

MR. EDEL responded that he could support on-shore devel opnent.

4:37:40 PM 4: 33: 51

ANNETTE W LSON, stated support for HB 134 primarily because the
village of |Igiagik is dependent on obtaining potable water
directly from Lake IIliama. She observed that sone fishernen
are “go-getters,” and doing well, while others are not as

aggressi ve; hence | ess successful.

4:39:56 PM

PETER ANGESAN, said it would be inportant to put the “what if’s”
aside and focus on the positive concrete aspects. He opi ned
that there is no future in fishing, the villages are dying, and
crinme rate is up; due to lack of enploynent. At one tinme there
was concern for the oil operations in Prudhoe Bay, but that
hurdl e has been crossed and having worked there, he attested to
the clean operations. Further, he pledged confidence in the
permtting process and protection agencies to do a good job. He
reiterated that he supports all fronts: progress, sustainable
life styles, and HB 134.

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 23- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



4: 45: 10 PM [ 4: 41: 08]

JOHN HOLMAN, Omner, No Seeum Lodge, stated support for HB 134,
and cautioned against inpinging on existing operations, while
attenpting to protect the area. He recomended narrowi ng the
bill to focus on the Pebble M ne. Additionally, oil and gas
devel opnments woul d pose pollution problens for Bristol Bay, and
effect the fish returns. M ning and oil devel opnents should be
held to the sanme standards. Protection of the water, on a grand

scale, is the priority concern, he finished.

4:48: 14 PM 4: 44: 24

DOUGLAS QOLSON, relayed that he is a comrercial fisherman who
mar kets his own product. The marketing edge is based on the
pristine environnent that the catch is produced from He said
he is pro-progress, but caution should be exercised on how the
progress is defined. Havi ng noved to Alaska from a mning town
in California, he said he has severe doubts about the permtting
process. A nonrenewabl e paycheck is not worth trading in for a
renewabl e paycheck, he said.

4:51:25 PM 4:47:07

JOHN SAVO JR., said he is a generational fisherman. He cited
t he nunber of people in the villages who traditionally subsist,
wi t hout other skills, and he asked what would happen to themif
the resource were not there. He recommended that the
restrictions for energy production include nuclear plants and

river dans.

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 24- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



4:53:17 PM 4:48: 50

CHAI R SEATON gave thanks to the gallery, and solicited witten
t esti nony.

DRAFT
ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Conmittee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at 4:49
p. m

HOUSE FSH COWMM TTEE - 25- DRAF Tsept enber 25, 2007



